
CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

AGENDA 

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 at 1:00 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Approval of Minutes 

a. April 9, 2024 Minutes 

V. Adoption of Agenda 

VI. Correspondence 

a. Professional Opinion Letter from Jennifer Metz, Past Perfect, re: Red House 
Demolition 

VII. Committee Reports 

VIII. Staff Report 

a. MD24-011-018(H) McGreevy 2nd floor Deck Board Replacement 

IX. Old Business 

a. May Residence Demolition by Neglect Discussion 

b. Education Segment Discussion 

c. HB24-041-016 Jaquiss Demolition 

X. New Business 

a. East End Mission Historic District Letter to Property Owners 

b. Demolition Application Discussion 

c. Discussion Regarding Minutes Being Reviewed by Attorney 

d. R124-042-021(H) Bayview New Egress Window 

XI. Public Comment 

XII. Adjournment 

1



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND

MINUTES 

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

Tuesday, April 09, 2024 at 10:00 AM
City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

I. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 10:02 AM. 

II. Roll Call

PRESENT 
Andrew Doud 
Alan Sehoyan 
Nancy Porter 

Staff: Gary Rentrop, Rick Neumann 

ABSENT 
Lee Finkel 
Lorna Straus 

III. Pledge of Allegiance

IV. Approval of Minutes

a. March 21, 2024 Minutes 

Motion to approve as written. 

Motion made by  Doud, Seconded by  Sehoyan. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

V. Adoption of Agenda

Motion to approve as amended.  The amendment included moving the Education Segment 
to Old Business to discuss whether the segments should still be included in the meetings. 

2

Section IV, Itema.



2 

Historic District Commission April 9, 2024 

Motion made by  Sehoyan, Seconded by  Doud. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

Jim Murray asked if the Jaquiss application should be removed since there is not a quorum 
to discuss it today.  Murray was informed that the application would be tabled when it 
came to the agenda item.  Doud asked Rentrop if the new application submitted triggered 
a new 60 day time frame.  There was some confusion on the status of the project and a 
new application.  Porter stated that she wanted to make sure the application submitted is 
complete.  Rentrop pointed out that in the minutes he stated that the applicant would not 
need to submit a new application.  However, the applicant did submit a new 
application.  Porter asked if the application is complete now? She did not want to hear that 
it is incomplete, 30 days from now.  Rentrop stated he isn't going to raise anything and that 
the HDC made themselves very clear last month that they accepted the 
application.  Rentrop stated as far as applying guidelines, he wasn't going to raise any 
issue.  Someone else might, but Rentrop would not.  Rentrop suggested moving forward 
with the new application, just like they did with the old application.  If the HDC is satisfied 
that you have everything you need on that application, then that is your call.  Sehoyan is 
wondering who determines if the application is complete.  Rentrop suggested that the HDC 
determines if an application is complete.  Porter wanted clarification that the 60 days starts 
when the application was submitted.  Porter again asked if anything was missing from the 
application.  As long as they are happy, she just does not want a discussion again in 30 
days about something that is incomplete.  Doud asked Murray if the applicant would like to 
withdraw the new application.  Porter stated that either application would still start a new 
60 day clock.  Doud stated in his opinion the clock would start now.  Doud asked Sehoyan, 
if they hadn't submitted a new application, would he be OK with the old 
application.  Sehoyan stated yes, according to what Rentrop stated.  Doud feels the 
applicant just went above and beyond with submitting a new application.  Porter confirmed 
that the clocks starts now since the old one was denied.  Doud asked Rentrop if he had an 
issue with the applications.  Rentrop stated that the HDC is aware he has an issue with the 
old application but is remaining silent after they voted to accept the application.  Doud 
asked Rentrop what our best legal position is and Rentrop stated starting the new 60 day 
clock when they submitted the new application.  Doud asked if Murray was ok with this and 
Murray stated yes.   

VI. Correspondence

None 

VII. Committee Reports

None 

VIII. Staff Report

3

Section IV, Itema.



3 

Historic District Commission April 9, 2024 

a. Education Segment 

It was decided to wait for the full commission to discuss whether the Commission 
would like to continue with monthly Education Segments.  This will be placed on the 
May Agenda, for discussion. 

IX. Old Business

a. MD23-021-018(H) GHMI Carousel Mall Amendment 

Jack from Blinderman Construction described the work to be done. Dombroski stated 
he agreed with Jack that the vents have to get moved. 

Motion to approve. 

Motion made by  Sehoyan, Seconded by  Doud. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

X. New Business

a. C24-014-012(H) Sheplers Dock Security Equipment 

Chris Shepler stated he was asked to make the towers legal through the HDC, by 
City Council.  The applicant would like to keep the towers there and need the HDC’s 
ok.  Dombroski stated the towers are a significant feature on the dock and were not 
part of the original change.  Neumann did a positive review. Neumann pointed out 
that in the application someone stated they could be painted.  Shepler stated the 
towers cannot be painted because of the IT infrastructure.  But further said, what we 
can do is modify the black panels.  Jason Wiley stated he checked with SLS and 
confirmed they can't be painted.  The black portion of the tower can be 
customizable.  The yellow border cannot be changed.  Neumann stated the less 
visible they are, the better. Sehoyan suggested white.  Doud stated the HDC does 
not review color.  Neumann stated he understood that, but if you can make the panel 
not a strong visible element, it would be better.  Shepler would like the Commission 
to suggest the color.  After Shepler described the look of the towers, Neumann 
suggested they stay black.  Motion to approve. 

Motion made by  Sehoyan, Seconded by  Doud. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

b. MD24-017-014(H) GHMI Parker Apt Gutters 

Richard Chambers stated they are replacing the K- style gutters that were damaged 
and removed in 2014. Dombroski and Neumann were both OK with the 
application.  Motion to approve. 

4

Section IV, Itema.



4 

Historic District Commission April 9, 2024 

Motion made by  Sehoyan, Seconded by  Doud. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

c. HB24-041-016 Jaquiss Demolition 

The Agenda item was tabled until May due to the fact there was not a quorum.   

d. C24-014-017(H) Sheplers Dock Modifications 

Dombroski stated that with the water dropping, the dock does not work for a large 
part of their fleet.  He is viewing this as a health, safety, welfare situation so people 
can board the boats safely.  Neumann did a positive review.  Motion to approve. 

Motion made by  Sehoyan, Seconded by  Doud. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

Sehoyan asked when they are starting the project.  Shepler stated the engineering 
firm is working with Moran Iron Works to get started.  Plan is to start working the Capt 
Shepler with the crew and equipment and get the docks corrected by April 21st. 

e. Discussion re: Review of Policies with legal, architect and City Council 

Doud requested this discussion.  Finkel and Straus will be at the next meeting.  Doud 
stated his thought on this goes back to the Steiner application.  Decisions were made 
with legal work without the commission knowing.  Doud stated this was also the case 
with the T-mobile application.  Going forward Doud believes the commission should 
have an opinion before engaging legal help.  Doud suggested a liaison from the 
commission work with legal so the commission is aware of any legal work going 
on.  This would also apply to the architect work. Doud stated there was a big question 
as to whether there should be a review of the red house, and he doesn't feel that 
came from the Commission.   Doud stated the commission should be far more 
involved. In referring to the Steiner application, Sehoyan thought it was on the 
applicant to prove ownership and instead, the HDC took that on. Doud stated 
Dombroski is the front line and used the example of the cell tower on Douds 
market.  The Commission had not been involved at all and calls were already coming 
in regarding the placement.  Doud asked should the architect contact the lawyer or 
the Commission as to whether a review should be done.  Sehoyan pointed out that 
before the red house his reviews have been done.  Sehoyan would like clarification 
on when an application is presented who deems it complete?  Porter stated that the 
Commission is not in the position to know if something is missing and someone 
needs to deem it complete and then if not complete, applicant should be 
told.  Sehoyan used the example of the Callawaert shed application being 
incomplete.  Doud stated that falls on Pereny.  Porter stated not necessarily because 
other people see it. Pereny stated she looks for obvious things such as missing 
pictures or site plans, but the rest is up to the Commission.  Porter stated she would 
be the last person to know if something was missing from a demolition 
application.  Doud asked if they should look at the demolition application and see if it 

5

Section IV, Itema.



5 

Historic District Commission April 9, 2024 

can be mainstreamed?  Porter thinks all applications should be made sure to be 
complete. Doud stated maybe the liaison could work with the lawyer.  Porter feels 
someone else needs to look at the applications to make sure they are complete, 
before they come to the Commission.  Porter asked Pereny if she noticed anything 
missing from the red house application at the time it came in.  Pereny stated she 
would not know.   Doud stated that Pereny has applicants trying to push applications 
through.  Porter stressed again that an applicant needs to be informed right away if 
something is missing from the application.  Porter suggested having Pereny give the 
application to someone else to review, like the lawyer, to review and deem it 
complete.  Doud would like to review the demolition application in the May 
meeting.  Porter then suggested if the Commission was more educated they could 
vote on whether the application is complete or not via a Motion and then the clock 
would start when the Commission accepted the application. Pereny reminded the 
commission they have two weeks before the meeting to look at the 
applications.  Doud asked what the chairman policy is?  Danielle Leach stated the 
mayor makes appointments in May. Doud would like to figure out how a Chair is 
appointed, if there is a time limit, and does the Commission want to create a policy 
for the Chair.  Doud stated he would like to discuss the policy with legal 
representation with city council. do we have input on who our lawyer is?  Leach 
stated City Council would like to have a joint meeting with the HDC before May if 
possible; before the election so its the current council.  The goal is to just make sure 
everyone is on the same page. Leach will put out some dates and see when it can be 
scheduled. Doud would not commit to any time at this point. 

Fortino wanted to reiterate that you can't deem an application complete out of a 
meeting. Fortino stated she thinks the chair serves as the county board liaison in 
Mackinac County.   Make clear whomever liaison is can't discuss with other 
commissioners because that is considered deliberation and a round robin. In 
addition, you cannot deliberate via email.   

Neumann stated in his experience the demolition requests are so minimal but the 
applications considered incomplete are usually due to photos missing of surrounding 
area.  

Doud asked Evashevski if she reviews City Council minutes before approved by 
council? Evashevksi said it depends if Leach sends them to her.  Pereny stated all of 
the Planning Commission minutes are sent to Evashevski for review.  Doud stated 
the Commission can decide if we want the lawyer to review minutes before 
approval.  Doud asked if anyone had any comments regarding this 
discussion.  Rentrop stated he has no comments.  Dombroski stated he has no 
comment right now.  Neumann had no comment.   

Doud asked Rentrop and Neumann if they have a problem with a liaison.  Both are ok 
with it. 

Sehoyan asked about the May residence from March. Dombroski stated he did not 
look at it yet.  It will be on May agenda. 

6

Section IV, Itema.



6 

Historic District Commission April 9, 2024 

XI. Public Comment

None 

XII. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 11:07 AM. 

Motion made by  Doud, Seconded by  Sehoyan. 
Voting Yea:  Doud,  Sehoyan,  Porter 

_______________________________ _____________________________________ 

Andrew Doud, Acting Chair  Katie Pereny, Secretary 

7

Section IV, Itema.



 

April 11, 2024 

Mackinac Island City Council 
Mackinac Island Historic Preservation Commission 
7358 Market Street 
Mackinac Island, Michigan 49757 
 

Dear Members of the Mackinac Island City Council and the Mackinac Island Historic District 
Commission: 

Please allow this to serve as comment for the public record on the demolition request for Thuya 
Cottage/Red House at 6948 Main Street, Mackinac Island, Michigan.  

My firm is Past Perfect, Inc. and I have been consulting to the Mackinac Island Historic District 
Study committee surveying, photographing, and writing the historic district study report for the 
possible designation of the East End Mission Historic District. I also worked for the island in 
2011 on the team that created the historic district study reports that resulted in the designation 
of the Mackinac Island Downtown Market/Main Historic District and the West End Historic 
District.  

I hold a BA in the History of Art from Michigan State University and a MS in Historic Preservation 
from the School of the Art Institute of Chicago. I have been a consultant in the field of Historic 
Preservation and Cultural Resources since 1997. I am certified as an Architectural Historian 36 
CFR 61 by the State Historic Preservation Office in Michigan. The work of Past Perfect includes 
National Register of Historic Places Nominations, historic resource inventories and surveys, 
Section 106 review for above-ground cultural resources, as well as Federal and State Historic 
Preservation Tax Credit certification applications. I served on the City of Grand Rapids Historic 
Preservation Commission for six years, including two years as chairperson. Currently, I serve on 
the board of the Michigan Historic Preservation Network. 

I have worked with numerous teams on the rehabilitation of historic buildings and 
neighborhoods all over the state.  I have seen first-hand buildings and structures of all styles, 
ages, and conditions and with a variety of goals and budgets be renovated or restored. Many 
times, retaining a resource and renovating is less expensive and costly to the environment than 
wholesale demolition and rebuilding. The historic materials and patina simply cannot be 
recreated today. Of course, buildings must be adapted and demolition is sometimes necessary, 

8

Section VI, Itema.



but in this case, I would urge careful consideration. Thuya Cottage is a significant contributing 
resource to the potential East End Mission Historic District, as well as to the National Historic 
Landmark Status of the entirety of Mackinac Island. I hope that you will deny the request to 
demolish this historic resource. 

History and Significance of Thuya Cottage/Red House: 

Like most Michiganders and many throughout the nation, we know the island is special not only 
for its incredible natural beauty, but for its deep and layered eras of human history.  Today 
above-ground built resources remaining from the 18th and 19th century are the most 
emblematic of what people know and love about Mackinac Island, helping to teach history 
through experience and drive the economy of tourism to the island.  

Built around 1830 per historic photographs and its architectural style, Thuya Cottage or the 
“Red House” is one of the earliest structures in existence on the east end of the island. The 
additions at the rear are pre-1882.  Thuya Cottage retains a remarkable degree of historic 
integrity in its materials and setting. Historic photographs show the house in much the same 
configuration as it appears today. Thuya Cottage is significant as a contributing resource to the 
East End Mission Historic District. It is significant under the Secretary of the Interior Standards 
for Historic Significance Criteria B for its association with the Dr. John Bailey family, as well as 
Criteria C for its architectural significance. 

It was the home of Dr. John Read Bailey (1833-1910) for a number of years. Bailey was 
appointed acting assistant surgeon at Fort Mackinac and Indian physician to the Chippewa and 
Odawa at the Michilimackinac Agency in 1854. After the Civil War, he again served as post 
surgeon, as well as the island’s only doctor for many years.  In 1890 Dr. Bailey opened the 
National Park Drug Store on Main Street next door to Fenton’s Bazaar, which he operated with 
his pharmacist son, Matthew. Throughout his fifty-year residency on the island Dr. Bailey was an 
active civic participant.  He was an early supporter of the creation of the National Park to 
protect the island’s natural “curiosities” from tourists, later was a member of the Mackinac 
State Park Commission, twice served as Village president, and was active in projects to improve 
the municipal and commercial conditions on the island.  

Per Tom Chambers, longtime islander and local historian, the original name was "Thuya," which 
appeared over the old front door in small etched glass panels. In the later 1800s, Matthew G. 
Bailey (1864-1942), the son of the Dr. John R. Bailey, owned the house. At age 21 Matthew 
became president of the village of Mackinac Island and in 1900 helped secure the city charter 
for Mackinac Island, becoming its first mayor.  He also ran Bailey's Drug Store. In 1885 Matthew 
married Sarah Gibson, and they had four children, Guy, Marion C, Sara, and Robert M. The 
Baileys lived in Thuya for a few more decades, and later moved across the street to Bay View 
Cottage. Around 1930, Tom and Ann Chambers purchased the Red House. They were children of 
"Cannonball" Bill Chambers of British Landing. Tom was a Great Lakes captain, and Ann would 
run a tourist home (B&B) in the house after she retired as school cook from Thomas W. Ferry 

9

Section VI, Itema.



school. In 1969 they sold the cottage to Tom Chamber’s mother Mary Duffina and her husband 
Ray Summerfield. It was sold to Frank Nephew around 1985. J. A. Van Fleet, author of Old and 
New Mackinac (1870) and Summer Resorts of the Mackinac Region (1882), both early 
guidebooks of the area, is said to have lived at Thuya as well for a short period of time. 

A demolition on the island must be considered only in dire circumstances or the historic 
preservation ordinance is of no protection. By design the criteria must be stringent – to allow a 
demolition of a contributing resource to a historic district there must be an extreme safety risk 
(with documentation and not due to overdue maintenance), or proof that demolition will make 
way for something to the betterment to the community on the whole –for example, a hospital 
or public infrastructure that cannot be located anywhere else – not simply to be replaced with 
another residential structure.  This demolition would not be neutral, but actually harm the 
community by removing an important building that contributes to the feeling, association and 
charm of the island that makes it historically significant and is in large part what drives the 
economy and its high land values. If renovated much of the original materials can be reused or 
replaced in kind – just as so many rehabilitations of historic buildings on the island have as well. 
Recently an islander reminded me that even the 2 x 4 framing is special – they are very likely 
nearly 200-year-old 2 x 4s and clear, or almost clear pine, sawed from logs cut on Boise Blanc 
Island, and milled at Mill Creek. They are likely fastened with hand-forged nails sourced from a 
local blacksmith; and the sheathing, if used, is also probably clear or almost clear pine in widths 
we hardly ever see anymore, like 1 X 16 or 1 X 20 boards.  

Working on the island I have gained a great respect for the local community and the care people 
have for each other and the island. I have learned too that the tightly knit island culture is both 
endearing and challenging for those who live and work here. I hope decision makers will keep in 
mind that denying a demolition will not deny the use of this property to its owners. Sensitive 
renovation can occur which retains the character-defining features of the structure. There is not 
sufficient reason per the ordinance to demolish this important historic resource. 

Thank you for considering my comments. I appreciate your public service on the City 
Commission and Historic District Commission to Mackinac Island.  

Sincerely, 

 

Jennifer Metz 

 

10

Section VI, Itema.



11

Section VIII, Itema.



12

Section VIII, Itema.



13

Section VIII, Itema.



14

Section IX, Itemc.



15

Section IX, Itemc.



16

Section IX, Itemc.



17

Section IX, Itemc.



18

Section IX, Itemc.



19

Section IX, Itemc.



20

Section IX, Itemc.



21

Section IX, Itemc.



22

Section IX, Itemc.



23

Section IX, Itemc.



24

Section IX, Itemc.



25

Section IX, Itemc.



26

Section X, Itema.



27

Section X, Itemb.



28

Section X, Itemb.



29

Section X, Itemb.



30

Section X, Itemb.



31

Section X, Itemb.



32

Section X, Itemb.



33

Section X, Itemb.



34

Section X, Itemb.



35

Section X, Itemb.



36

Section X, Itemb.



37

Section X, Itemb.



38

Section X, Itemb.



39

Section X, Itemd.



40

Section X, Itemd.



41

Section X, Itemd.



42

Section X, Itemd.



43

Section X, Itemd.



44

Section X, Itemd.



45

Section X, Itemd.



46

Section X, Itemd.



47

Section X, Itemd.



48

Section X, Itemd.



49

Section X, Itemd.


	Top
	Section IV, Itema.	April 9, 2024 Minutes
	HDC April 9 24

	Section VI, Itema.	Professional Opinion Letter from Jennifer Metz, Past Perfect, re: Red House Demolition
	Metz Professional Opinion Letter

	Section VIII, Itema.	MD24-011-018(H) McGreevy 2nd floor Deck Board Replacement
	MD24-011-018(H) McGreevy 2nd story deck board replacement

	Section IX, Itemc.	HB24-041-016 Jaquiss Demolition
	HB24-041-016 Jaquiss Demolition
	New Jaquiss Residence DR

	Section X, Itema.	East End Mission Historic District Letter to Property Owners
	East End Mission District Letter

	Section X, Itemb.	Demolition Application Discussion
	HDC Demo app

	Section X, Itemd.	R124-042-021(H) Bayview New Egress Window
	R124-042-021(H) Bayview Egress Window Packet
	Bayview A1.0_Existing Floor Plan
	Bayview A1.2_East Elevation
	Bayview A1.1_Proposed Floor Plan

	Bottom

